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INDEPENDENT AUDTTOR'S REPORT

To the Members of HAppyMATE FOODS UMTTED

Report on the Audit of the Financiat Statements
Opinion

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of HAppyMATE FooDs
LIM|TED (,,the company,,),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3!,2020, the statement
of profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive lncome), the cash Flow Statement and the statement
of changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements,,).
ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
201-3 (,,the Act,,) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in lndia,
of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31,,2020, its profit including
other comprehensive income its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Basis

for Opinion

we conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the standards on Auditing (sAs),
as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in
the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our report.
we are
independent of the company in accordance with the 'code of Ethics' issued
by the lnstitute of chartered
Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial

statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of Ethics.
we believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the financial

statements.

we draw your ottention to Note 36 which indicates thot the compony hos incurred
loss of Rs.77,43,27,423.66
during the yeor ended 37st March 2020 ond as of thot dote the compony's net
worth has been completely
eroded, its current liobilities exceeded its current ossets. As stoted in the oforesoid
note, these events or
conditions, indicote that o materiol uncertainty exists that moy cast significont
doubt on the compony,s obility to
continue as a going concern and the company is dependent on the porent
compony for orrongement of
necessory funds to continue its business. our opinion is not modified in respect
of this motter.
Other tnformation

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the company's Annual Report,
but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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ln connection with our andit of the financialstatements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf, based on
the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information
we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial

performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company rn
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lndian
Accounting
Standards (lnd AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
[the companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amendedl.This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
th,,design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or
error.

ln

preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company,s
ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

'

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

'

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

I
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Evaluate the approp-riateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
lf we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor,s
report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate

the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including

disclosures and whether the financial statements represent
manner that achieves fair presentation.

the

the underlying transactions and events in a

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our vrork; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those'charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Report on Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) order, 201.6 ("the order,,), issued by the central
Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 743 of the Act, we give in the ,,Annexure
A,, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and

so far as it

Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
lncome, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in
agreement with the books of account.

h

Singfri st

Co,

Clarteted Accountants

.......contd.

(d) ln our opin'ton, ,i. ,for.r.id financial statements comply with the lndian Accounting
Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as
amended;

(e) On the

basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
3L,2)Z}taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
3l,z)21from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 764 (2) of the AcU

(f)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company
with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to
our separate Report in "Annexure 8,, to this report

(g) ln our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 37,
2o2o has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2074, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.
ii.
iii.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required
Protection Fund by the Company.

to be transferred to the lnvestor

Education and

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountats
Firm Registration No.303049E

(\i

w;9
(M.
tit em be rsh i p

L. Shukta)

r".:3,.#;;

UDIN : 20051505AAAAAF1489
Place : Kolkata

Date : 23'd June, 2020
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Annexure A referred tf in p.r"graph 1 of our report
requirements (HAPPYMATE FOODS LtMtTED)

i' a'
b.

of even date on the other legal and regulatory

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and
situation of property, plant & equipment.

All property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the management in the previous year
in
accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our
opinion, is
reasonable having regard

to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material

discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c.
ii^

to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly,
the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According

The management has conducted physical verification of inventories, except stock in transit and inventories
lying with third parties, during the year at reasonable interval and no material discrepancies
were noticed on
such physica I verification.

iii" The Company has not granted any loan to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies' Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions
of clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable.

iv.

The Company has no transaction with respect to loan, investment; guarantee and security covered under
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not

applicable.

v.
vi.

The Company has not accepted any deposit covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) during the year. Therefore, provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under the section
148(1) of the Act read with companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 201,4, as amended for the goods/
product manufactured by the Company.

vii. a.

b'

According to the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, with the appropriate
authorities. The provisions relating to employees' state insurance are not applicable to the Company.
There was no undisputed outstandin8 statutory dues as at the yearend for a period of more than
six
months from the date they became payable.
According to the records of the Company, there are no dues outstanding of income tax, sales tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, goods and service tax and value added tax on account of any

dispute.

viii.

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial institution
or

bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(viii) of the Order are not applicable.

ix.

During the year, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Further in our opinion and explanations given to us, term loans
raised during
the year were applied for the purpose for which loans were raised.

u
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the audii procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the
Based upon

company or no fraud on the company by its officers and employees has been noticed or reported
during the

year.
xt.

xil.

The managerial remuneration has been paid/ provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated
by the provisions of section L97 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013.

ln our opinion, the company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order

are not applicable.
xiii.

According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the related parties
are in
compliance with section \77 and 188 of the Companies Act, 201.3 wherever applicable and details
for the
same have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable lndian accounting

standa rds.

xlv.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv)
of the Order
are not applicable.

xv"

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with directors. Therefore, the provisions
of
clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable.

xvt.

The company is not required

to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of tndia Act 1934.
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountats

Firm Registration No.303049E

MP
\"

(M.

L. Shukta)

Partner
Membership No.051505
UDIN : 20051505AAAAAF1489

Place : Kolkata

Date : 23'd June, 2020
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ANNEXURE B

Report on the lnternal Financial controls under Clause (i) of Sub - section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of HAppyMATE FOODS
LIMITED ('the Company")as of March 3L,2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.
Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controts
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over the financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor/s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "guidance Note") and the standards on
Auditing, issued by lCAland deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable for the audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controlsoperated effectively in allmaterial respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of tnternal Financial controls with reference to financial statements
A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financialstatements

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal;
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company ; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorization of management and directors of the company ; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
!nherent Limitations of Interna! Financial controls with reference to financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of lnternal Financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due

to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internalfinancial
controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectivefy as at March 3t,2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
lnternal Financial controls with reference to financial statements issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia.
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountats
Firm Registration No.303049E

WL

h
Place : Kolkata

Date : 23'd June, 2020
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HAPPYMATE FOODS LIMITED

Corporate ldentity No. (CtN) - U15118WSZOL8qLCZ264S7
lnnovation Tower, Premises No, 1G-315, plot No. DH G/32
Action Area - lp, New Town, Raiarha
Balance Sheet As At March 3L,ZOZO
(Rs.in Lacsl
Pa

rticulars

Note No.

As at Mar 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

\(
) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Other non-current assets

4\.78

3

27.t4

4

205.93
4L.78

233.07

60.8s

726.66

assets
I

nventories

5

Finahcial assets
(i) lnvestment

6

(ii) Trade receivables
(iii)Cash and cash equivalents

192.60

7

3.10

8

9.61

12.80

12.5L

(iv) Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets

9

500.55

294.62

4

(d) lncome tax assets (net)

740.72

62.82

10

0,02

0.04

7L4.85

702.05

756.63

935.12

500.01

500.01

A5SET5
ITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

11

12

Total equity

.7,732.44r.

8.33

(632.43)

508.34

IABILITIES

urrent liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liability
(ii) Trade payables

5.62
13

(a) Totat Outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and

|
I
|
I

small enterprises
{O)

l{o)

ro,ut Outstanding dues of creditors other than

329.80

Mrcro enterprises and small enterprises
LonB
provisions

I

t.r,

I

lCurrent

74

15

(ii) Trade Payables

13

78.20

(a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and

small enterprises
(b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than
Micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities
(iv)Lease liability

16

0.27

6.47

1,283.19

57.22

8.49

79.7r

4.37

(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions

77

6.68

9.84

L4

0.02

0.13

L,387.22

93.31

Total liabilities

1,389.06

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES

7s5.53

of significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date
For Singhi & Co.

426.78
935.12

|
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lSummary
The accompanyrng notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Pa

3.67

t3t.47

liabilities

(a) Financral liabilities
(i) Borrowings

Cha

2.22
7.44

^ ,clhqd
'(-'

B. L.

rtne r

Di

Mittal

,a

Membership No.: 051505

Place :

Kolkata

Date :23rd June,2020

Ravi Kant Sharma

rector

h

aVa Sarkar
Di

rector

DIN : 06582208

Director
DIN :00364066

Corporate tdentity No, (CtN) - U15r18WBZOLBqLCZ264S7
lnnovation Tower, premises No. 16-315, plot No. DH 6/32
Action Area - lu..tNgw Town, Raiarhat, K
of Profit and Loss for

€nded March 31, 2020

Revenue from Operations

18

lncome
lncome (l+ll)

19

of Materials Consumed
/ Decrease in Inventories of Finished Goods and Traded Goods
Benefits Expense

20

exp enseS
Exp e n

33.87

22

139.96

23

4.81

3

ses

98.33

27

80.74

L2.75

2.04

24

Expenses (lV)

before tax for the year ( tv-ilt

497.27

)

Tax Expense:
(a) Current Tax

(b) Deferred Tax
for the year (V-Vt)

l49t,r2l

Comprehensive lncome (OCt)
that will not be subsequently classified to profit or loss
gains on defined benefit plans
Comprehensive tncome/(Loss) for the year,net of income tax
Comprehensive tncome/(Loss) for the year (Vil+Vilt)
share

'

Basic qnd Diluted (Face value Rs 10

Summary of significant accounting policies

Ihe accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date

For Singhi & Co.
Firm Registration No: 302049E
Chartered Accountants

l[,r')/
M

L

Shukla

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P't*'

.? \c-9\Ac^''nn
B.
Di

t. Mittal
rector

Partner

DIN :00364066

Membership No.:051505

Place : (olkata
: 23rd

Ravi Kant Sharma

Director

Director
DIN : 06582208

h

HAPPYMATE FOODS LIMITED

Corporate ldentity No. (CtN) _ U15118W
BZOLSrILCZZ}4ST
lnnovation Tower, premises No. 1O-315, plot
No. DH 5/32
Action Area - 1D. Ne.!ry.._Trr!U!.&ejorhat,
Kolkata _ 7OO i5G
Statement of Cash Flows for the

Prof itl(Loss)

B{pre

Tax

(7,743.27

Ad.iustments to reconcile profit
before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense

1497.72

12.75
(11.62)

Profit on sale on current lnvestment
Net gain /(Loss) arising on financial
assets measured at FVTPL

9,50

lnterest lncome

Finance Costs
Operating cash flows before Working
Capital changes

4.8L

(L,L27.74t.

Working capital adjustments:

lncrease in Trade payables
(Decrease)/lncrease in Other
Current Liabiiities
(Decrease)/lncrease ln Other
Financial Liabilities
(Decrease)/lncrease in provisions

890.01
(3.s 1 )

(14.45)
0.94

Decrease,/ (lncrease) in lnventones
Decrease/ (lncrease) in Trade Receivables
Decrease/ (lncrease) in Other non_current
assets
(lncrease) in Other financial

65.81
9.47
20s.93

assets

(20s.93

(lncrease) in Other current
assets

)

l77.8el
Cash Used in Operations
I ncome-Tax (paid)/Recovered
Net cosh used in Operdting Activities

I

B. lnvesting Activities
purchase of property,plants
& Equipments
purchase of
Current Investments
proceeds from
sale of Current lnvestment
lnterest on loans and deposits
Net cosh (used in)/ Generoted
lnvesting

lrom

Activities

C. Financing Activlties
Proceed from lssue of Share Capital
Proceed from lssue of Share Warrants
Proceeds from Short term borrowings

(net)

Lease payments

Net cosh Generated
from Finoncing Activities

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at
the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at
the end of the

:r:::;:,:;

tash Flow statement has been prepared
under the rndirect Method

as set out in the rnd As - 7 ,,statement

2. Cash & Cash Equivalents are
represented by:
Cash on Hand

ln Current Accounts

Total

:J::r'j::j f:Ir:il"'

9.39

--

have been regrouped/ rearransed
to conrorm to the crassirication or the
current year,

Thjs is the cash flow statement referred
to in our report of even date,
For Singhi & Co.

Firm Registration No: 3O2O49E

Chartered Accountants

WrJ'/

P\c>\Aa"rrn

M t Shukla

Ravi Kant Sharma

Partner

Di

rector

DIN : 00364066

Membership No.:05150S

.r'
Place : Kolkata

Director
DIN :06582208
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HAPPYMATE

FOOD'tMtTEd

Corporate tdentity No. (CtN) U1S118WB2O 1BILCZ264S7

lnnovation Tor
A

ct o n

A

rea

i;:,^ffiTfi:)l;,i?;11];lii:

X1

i# i1,;

atement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended Mar 3L,2O2O
A) Equity Share Capital (Refer
note 11)

u
I

Subscribed .nO fulty

piffi

As at April L,2018
Additions/ (deletions) during
the year
As at March 31, 2019
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Happymate Foods Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3L March 2020

1. Corporate lnformation
Happymate Foods Limited (the"Company" or "HFL") is a public company domiciled in lndia. The Company is incorporated in
6th June, 2018 under the provisiqp of Companies Act, 2013 and engaged in the business of manufacturing of certain food
products and sale of those products as a wholesale trader.
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS)
notified under the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time)and presentation
requirements of Division ll of Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013, (lnd AS compliant Schedule lll), as applicable to the
CFS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historicalcost basis.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (lNR
otherwise indicated.

OO,0OO),

except when

The financial statements for the year ended March 31.,2020, are the first financial statements, the Company has prepared
in accordance with lnd AS. The transition to lnd AS was carried out in accordance with lnd AS 101 First-Time adoption of
lndian Accounting Standards with the date of transition as April 01, 2018. Refer Note 38 for description of the effect of
transition and reconciliations required as per lnd AS 101.
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset
treated as current when it is:

/
/
'/
'r

is

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

F
',
',
',

lt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
lt is held primarily for the purpose of trading
lt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

h
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b.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amountsrpf revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options

-

Company as lessee

Judgements
ln the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options

-

Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include extension

and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not
to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements
or significant customisation to the leased asset). The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for
leases of property with shorter non-cancellable period (i.e., three to five years).
Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable'profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. ln the absence of reasonable certainty of future taxable profits, supported
by convincing evidence, the net deferred tax assets have not been recognised in these financial results.
Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. ln determining the appropriate discount rate for plans, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-

employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for lndia. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

h
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Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 27
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of finaritial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit

risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
instruments. See Note 31for further disclosures.

c.

the reported fair value of financial

Foreign currencies

The Company's financial statements are presented in lNR, which is also the parent company's functionalcurrency. For each
entity the Company determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company's entities at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses
average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date,
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of nonmonetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).
ln determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it)on

the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the
transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. lf there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Company determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

d.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, slrch as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

/
./

ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principalor the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

h
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
^.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

'r

directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whethertransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

e.

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
can be reliably measured.

willflow to the Company

and the revenue

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The company collects taxes on behalf of the government and,

a)

therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.
b) lnterest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rates
applicable. lnterest income is included under the head "Other lncome" in the statement of profit and loss.

c) Profit/(loss) on sale of current investments is determined based on the weighted average cost of the investments
sold.Profit /(loss) on sale of current investments is included under the head"Other lncome" in the statement of profit and
loss.

Controct bolonces
Trade receivables
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e,, only the passage of time is req uired before
payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments

-

initial recognition and subsequent measurement.
Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Happymate Foods Limited
Notes td Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

f.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with. \i[hen the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an
asset, it is recognised as income in equalamounts overthe expected useful life of the related asset.
When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e'
by equal annual instalments.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current
applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is
initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy
applicable to financial liabilities.

g.

Taxes

Current income tox

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

r
'/

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwillor an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss
ln respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for alldeductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

/

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised

W
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become
probable that future taxable proflts will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in
OCI or directly in equity.
The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
Soles/ volue odded taxes poid on ocquisition

of

ossets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

/

case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as
applicable
When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables
in the balance sheet.

h.

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. plant and equipment are
stated at cost,
net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part
of
the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying

amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for
the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition
criteria for a
provision are met' Refer to significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions and provisions
for further
information about the recorded decommissioning provision.
Depreciation is calculated on a Written Down Value (WDV) basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets
Type of Asset
Plant & Equipment
Computer
Furniture & Fixtures
Office equipment

as

follows:

Useful Life estimated by the
management
5-15 years
3 years
10 years
5 years

The Company depreciates it's Property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are as per the useful
life
prescribed in Schedule ll to the Companies Act, 2013 except Plant & Equ(lment which is lower
than those indicated in

lo\,/

d|

*\-'-
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Schedule ll i.e. 5-15 years. The management believes that these useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used.
An item of property, plant and eqgipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included In the

statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

i.

lntangible assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

lntangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to

modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.
lntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or
at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. lf not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control)or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

j.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

k.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing

the right to use the underlying assets.
(i

)

Riqht-of-use ossets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
ted depreciation and impairment losses, and
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
I

s
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adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assett
lf ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

a

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (m) lmpairment of nonfinancialassets.
(ii) Leose Liobilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

ln calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
ln addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
(iii) Short-term leoses ond leoses of low-volue ossets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of l-2 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). lt also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered
to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

l.

lnventories

lnventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product

to its present location and condition are accounted for

as follows:

location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

',

on the normaloperating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.
Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on specific identification of cost basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

m. lmpairment of non-financial

assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. lf any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing tor.n asset is required,
the asset's recoverable amount.

h
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An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Companys of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoveteble amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable

amount.
ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. ln determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators,
The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately
for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations
generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future

cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. ln any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Company operates, or for the market
in which the asset is used.
lmpairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCl. For such properties, the
impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
Under lnd AS 1,16.33, right-of-use assets are subject to the impairment requirements of lnd AS 36lmpairment of Assets.

n.

Provisions

Generol
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
net of any reimbursement.
lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.

o.

Retirement and other employee benefits
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scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. lf the contribution payable to the scheme for service

received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. lf the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services recef\)ed before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that
the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in lndia, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

/
/
'/

The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss:

settlements; and

p.

Financialinstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
Financialossets
I

n iti o I recog

nition o nd meosure

me

nt

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company's business modelfor managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under lnd AS 115. Refer to the accounting
policies in section (e) Revenue from contracts with customers.
For a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCl, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)'on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
actual cash flows, selling the

I
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financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financialassets classified and measured
at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
Ai
flows and selling.
Su bse que

nt meosu

re me

nt

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

/
/

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and
losses (debt instruments)

/

derecognition (equity instru ments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A'financialasset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a)The asset is held within a business model whose objective

is

to hold assets for collecting contractualcash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on

the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ElR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. Financial assets
at fair value throush OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)

A'financial asset' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a)The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractualcash flows and selling the financialassets,
and
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
For debt instruments, at fair value through OCl, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCl. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.
Financial assets designated at fair value throueh OCI (eouitv instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under lnd AS 32 Financial lnstruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which lnd AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Equity instruments designated at fair value
through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financialassets at fairvalue through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
11

value with net changes in fair value
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had not irrevocably elected
This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the company
of profit and
to classify at fair value through OCl. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement
loss when the right of payment has been established.
Derecognition

of similar financial assets) is primarily
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company
derecognised (i.e. removed from the company's balance sheet) when:

and either (a)
received cash flows in fullwithout materialdelay to a third party under a 'pass-through'arrangemenu
(b) the company has neither
the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
controlof the asset'
has
transferred
but
asset,
the
of
transferred nor retained substantially allthe risks and rewards

lmpairment of financial assets
notes:
Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following

instruments not held at fair value through
The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt
due in accordance with the contract and
flows
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractualcash

of the original effective interest
all the cash flows that the company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
credit enhancements that are
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
integral to the contractual terms.
ECLs

increase in credit risk since
are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next L2-

initial recognition, EcLs are
increase in credit risk since initial
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
life of the exposure, irrespective of
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL)'
ECLs. Therefore, the
For trade receivables and contract assets, the company applies a simplified approach in calculating
on lifetime ECLs at each
company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
loss experience, adjusted
reporting date. The company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment'

Finoncial liobilities
tnitiol recognition ond meosurement

through profit or loss, loans and
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
hedge, as appropriate'
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
and payables, net of
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
directly attributable transaction costs.
including bank overdrafts,
The company,s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.
Subseque nt me osu re me

nt

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

st (loans and borrowings)
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Financial liabilities at fair value throush profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as [pld for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relatlonships as defined by lnd AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for

trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held

fortrading are recognised in the profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in lnd AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/
losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred
to P&1. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair
value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowinss)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
Financial guarantee contracts

Financialguarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd AS 109 and the amount recognised less,
when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of lnd AS 115.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.
Reclassificotion of finonciol assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. lf the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financiol instrume nts
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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q.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or les.1 that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk

of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and short-term deposits,
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company,s

as defined

cash management.

r.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable
to equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders
of the company (after adjusting for
interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued
on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity

shares into Equity shares.

s.

ContingentLiabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control
of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the
obligation' A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized

because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in
the fina ncial statements.

t.

Segment Reporting

The Company operates in only one business segment i.e. trading of healthcare and
FMCG products. These, in the context of
lnd AS-108 on Segment Reporting are considered to constitute one single primary
segment. Further, there is no reportable
secondary segment i.e. Geographical Segment.

u.

Standards issued but not yet made effective by the Ministry of the Corporate Affairs

There are no standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance
of the company,s financial statement.

I
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4: Other Assets (at amortised cost)

Rs. ln Lacs

Non-current
As at
Mar 31, 2020
v,rrL!qr

sv,

evttstuErgg

Current
As

at

March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2019

E,uuq

Advance to suppliers
Balance with government authorities
Prepaid expenses

5.75
L28.96

20s.93

Advance to employees

205.93
NOTE 5 : lnventories

Rs. ln Lacs

As at

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable
Raw Materials (at cost)
Finished Goods

As

Mar 3L,2020

,alrel

Stock in transit

30,73

8.99

42.87

37.89

53.06

0.L7

Total

60.85

lnvestment (At fair value

Reliance Liquid Fund - Treasury plan - Growth plan - Growth
Option
Nil (March 31,201.9-4242.q9 units) face value Rs.10/_ each

L26.66

Rs. I n Lacs

As at

Unquoted Mutual Funds

at

March 31, 2019

13.80

Packing Materials

NOTE 6

As at
Mar 31, 2020

Mar 31, 2020

As

at

March 31, 2019

1.92.60

192.60

I

9.01
52.27

6.00
0.01

L.54

740.72

62.82
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NOTE 7

Rs. ln Lacs

: Trade Receivables
Current
As at

As at

Mar 31, 2020

March 3\,2OL9

Trade Receivables
U

nsecu red

Considered Good

3.10

L2.51

3.10

L2.5t

3.10

L2.57

Credit lmpaired
Less: Allowance for Credit lmpaired
Total Trade Receivables
*inlcudes dues from companies where directors are interested
*lncludes dues from subsidiaries

ffibleareduefromdi,ecto'so,otl,.,officersofthecompanyeitherseveratlyorjointlywithanyotherperson.
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 29.
'lrade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 3 to 30 days'
Rs

NOTE 8 :Cash and Cash

ln Lacs

Current
As at
March 3L,2OL9

As at

Mar 31,2O2O
Balances with banks

:

On current accounts
Cash on hand

Total

NOTE

9 : Other Financial

9.39

12.39

0.22

0.41

9.51

12.80
Rs. ln Lacs

Assets

Security Deposit

Total
Rs. ln Lacs

NOTE 10: lncome tax assets (net

Advance lncome Tax and Tax Deducted at source (Net of provision Rs. NIL)

(March 31,2019-Rs.Nil)

As at

As at

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

March 31,2019

Mar 31, 2020
Trade receivables (Note 7)

3.10

L2.5t

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 8)

9.61

12.80

500.55

294.62

513.26

319.93

\.

Other financial assets (Note 9)
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost

\_
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NOTE 11

:

Share Capital
Rs.

x

ln

Lacs

As at

As at

Mar 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Authorized capital
1,00,00,000(March 31,2019:100,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/, each

1,000.00
1,000.00

and paid-up capital
50,00,100(March 31,2019:50,00,100) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,000,00
1,000.00

lssued, subscribed

500.01

500.01

500.01

500.01

/ Rights attached to the equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share ls entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and
pays dividends in lndian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Terms

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

No Equity shares have been reserved for issue under options and contract/commitments for sale of shares/disinvestment as at the the Balance Sheet date.
The company has neither alloted any equity shares for consideration other than cash nor has issued any bonus shares nor has bought back any shares during the period of five
years preceeding the date at which Balance Sheet is prepared.
No securities which are convertlble into Equity/Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year.
No calls are unpaid by any directors or officers of the company during the year.
lssued

al
As

at Mar

lI,2020

No. of Shares

At the beginning of the year
lssued during the vear
Outstanding at the end of the year

Details

ot

As at March 31, 2019

Rs. In Lacs

5,000,100

500.01

5,000,100

s00.01

shares held by the Holding Company, the Ultimate Holding Companv,their Su sidiaries and Associates:
As at Mar 31, 2020
No. of Shares

Rs.

No. of Shares

As

ln Lacs

Rs. ln Lacs

5,000,100

500.01

5,000,100

500.01

at March 31,2019

No. of Shares

Rs. ln Lacs

Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited (including shares held by its nominees),Holding company

50,00,000 Equity Shares of

Rs. 10 each,

The details of shareholders

fully paid up

more than 5%

5,000,000

s00.00

5,000,000

500.00

shares is set below:
As

at Mar 3L,2020

No. of Shares
Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited (including shares held by its nominees)
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully patd up

5,000,000

As

% Holdins

99.9980/,

h

at March 31, 2019

No. of Shares
5,000,000

% Holdins

99.998%
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NOTE 11

:

Share Capital
Rs. ln Lacs

\

As at

As at

Mar 31, 2020

March 31,2019

Authorized capital
1,00,00,000(March 31,2019:100,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

and paid-up capital
50,00,100(March 31,2019:50,00,100) Equlty Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,000.00
1,000.00

1,000.00

s00.01
500.01

500.01

1,000.00

lssued, subscribed

500.01

/ Ri8hts attached to the equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and
pays dividends in lndian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Terms

ln the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining asset; of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
No Equity shares have been reserved for issue under options and contract/commitments for sale of shares/disinvestment as at the the Balance Sheet date.
The company has neither alloted any equity shares for consideration other than cash nor has issued any bonus shares nor has bought back any shares during the period of five
years preceeding the date at which Balance Sheet is prepared.
No securities which are convertible into Equity/Preference shares have been issued by the Company durlng the year.
No calls are unpaid by any directors or officers of the company during the year.
lssued
As

at Mar 31, 2020

No. of Shares

At the beginnlng of the year
lssued durins the vear
Outstanding at the end of the vear

Details

of

shares held bv the

the Ultimate

As at March

Rs. ln Lacs

5,000,100

s00.01

s,000,100

500.01

Subsidiaries and Associates:
As at Mar 3L,2O2O
No. of Shares

Rs.

No. of Shares

As

ln Lacs

37,20L9
Rs. ln Lacs

5,000,100

500.01

5,000,100

500.01

at March 31,2019

No. of Shares

Rs. ln Lacs

Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited (including shares held by its nominees),Holding company

50,00,000 Equity Shares of

Rs. 10 each,

The details of shareholders

fully paid up

more than 5%

5,000,000

500.00

5,000,000

500.00

shares is set below:
As

at Mar 3L,2020

No. of Shares
Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited (including shares held by its nominees)
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up

5,000,000

9XAII

As

% Holdine

99.9980/<

W

at March 3L,2079

No. of Shares
s,000,000

% Holdins

99.998%
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Rs.

12: Other

As at
March 31,2019

As at
Mar 31,2020

A. Retained Earnings (movements given below)
B. Share Warrant (movements given below)

Total - other Equity

ln Lacs

(L,632.44l

(491,.67)

s00.00
(L,L32.441

500.00
8.33

Movement in Retained Earni
As at
March 3l,zOLg

As at

Mar 31, 2020

l4et.67)

Opening Balance
Add: (Loss) for the year
Add Rp-Measrrrement sains on defined benefit plans

(7,143.27)

(4e1.12)

2.50

(o,ss)

(L,632.441

Closing Balance

Movement in Share Warrants
As at
Mar 31, 2020

149L.67l.

As at

March 31,2079

s00.00

Opening Balance
Add : Warrants issued during the year

500.00

Closing Balance

hr

500.00
s00.00
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v
NOTE

13:

Rs.. ln Lacs

Trade

Non-current
As

Cu

As at

at

Mar 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

As at
Mar 31, 2020

rrent
As

at

March 31, 2019

l'otalOutsanding dues
To Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises (refer note 13.1)

329.80
329.80

To Other than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises

0.27

6.41

t,283.L9

57.22

L,283.46

63.63

Note 13.1:
Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MsMED Act, 2006
As at
Mar 31, 2020

As

at

March 31, 2019

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid

to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
- Principalamount due

:

to micro and small enterprises

6.4L

0.27

- lnterest due on above
'The

amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section

1,6

of the

MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006
'Ihe
amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year
The amount offurther interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

NOTE 14

:

Provisions
Rs. ln Lacs

Current

Non-current

Provision for employee benefits (refer note-27

)

Total

As at

As at

Mar 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

As at
Mar 31, 2020

As

at

March 31, 2019

2.22

3.67

0.02

0.13

2.22

3.67

0.02

0.13

h
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAR 31,2O2O

NOTE 15

:

Borrowings
Rs. ln Lacs

U

As at

As at

Mar 31, 2020

March 3L,zOLg

nsecu red

78.20

From Body corporates I Refer note 29]

78.20
The above loan is repayable on demand and carries interest @1,1% p.a.simple interest.
NOTE 16

:

Other Financial Liablities (at amortised cost)
As at

As at

Mar 3L,2O2O
Payable

to Employees

8.49

TOTAL

19.7L

Rs. ln Lacs

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
As at

As at

Mar 31, 2020

March 3L,2OL9

78.20

Borrowings

9.99

Lease liability

Trade payables

1.,283.46

393.42

8.49

19.71

1,380.14

4L3.L3

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

:

19.71

3.23

lnterest accrued but not due on short term borrowings

NOTE 17

March 3L,2Ol9

5.26

Other Current Liablities
Rs. ln Lacs

As at

As at

Mar 3L,2O2O

March 31-,2Ot9

Statutory liabilities

4.69

Advance from customers

1.99

6.68

TOTAL

I

9.84
9.84

HAPPYMATE FOODS LIMITED

Corporate ldentity No. (Cl N ) - U 15118W820L9PLC226457
lnnovation Tower, Premises No. 15-315, Plot No. DH 6132
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Revenue from Operation
Rs. ln Lacs

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended

March, 2020

31st March,2019

Particulars
Sale of Products

168.31

Finished Goods

168.31

18.1

88.19
As at
March 31, 2019

As at

Contract balances

88.19

March 31,2020
Trade receivables

3.10

Contract liabilities

1.99

L2,5L

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 3 to 30 days.
Contract liabilities include advances received from customers for finished products.

L8.2 Performance obligation
The performance obligation is satisfied upon the delivery of the products which generally ranges within 3 to 30 days from the date of

delivery.

19

Rs. ln Lacr

Other lncome
For the year ended 31st
March,2020

Particulars

lnterest on Fixed Deposit
Profit on sale of Current lnvestments
Net gain /(Loss) arising on financial assets measured at
lnterest on Securlty Deposit

31st March,2015
0.39

FVTPL

Miscellaneous lncome

20

For the year endec

1.1.62

9.50

(e.60)

9.60

0.04

0.01

2.06

19.50

For the year ended 31st

For the year endec

March,2020

31st March,201!

Cost of Raw Materials and Components Consumed
Rs. ln Lacs

Particulars
Raw Material and components consumed

lnventory at the beginning of the year
Add : Purchases
Less : lnventory at the end ofthe year IRefer Note 5]
Cost of raw material and components consumed

2l

(lncrease)

/

30.73
81.40

92.42

13.80

30.73

98.33

61.69

Decrease in lnventories of Traded Goods and Finished Goods
Rs. ln Lacr

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

For the year endec

March,2020

31st March,201!

lnventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods

42.87
42.87

lnventories at the end of the year [Refer Note 5]
Finished goods

,(-'

W

8.99
8.99

42.87
42.87

33.87

(42.87,

HAPPYMATE FOODS LIMITED

Corporate ldentity N o. (Cl N ) - U 15 1 18W820L8PLC226457
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Employee Benefits Expensg.
Rs. ln Lacs

Particulars
Sa la

For the year ended

March,2020

31st March, 2019
75.53

732.20

ries

Contribution to Provident and other funds
Contribution to Employees' State lnsurance
Gratuity Expense IRefer Note 27]
Staff Welfare Expenses

23

For the year ended 31st

5.50

t.25

2.62
0.99
1.39

0.94
0.07

0.2\

139.95

80.74

Finance Costs
For the year ended 31st

Particulars

March,2020
nterest Expense
lnterest expense on lease liablities
I

Rs. ln Lacs
year
ended
For the
31st March, 2019

3.s9
1.,22

4.81

24

Other Expenses
Rs. ln Lacs

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended

March, 2020

31st March,2019

Advertisement and selling expenses

690.71

Conversion charges
Packing materials consumed

235.7t

323.06
80.48

Particulars

43.77

1.5.72

Electricity expenses

2.19

0.90

Logistics expenses

6.43

9.61

Testing charges

0.1,4

1..32

Rent

3.24

2.82

Repairs and ma intenance-others

0.s9

1..49

Service charges

3.36

18.21.

lnsurance

0.07

0.08

Rates and taxes

1.23

0.22

Business promotion expenses

7.36

13.24

Bank & demat charges

0.02

0.03

Communication expenses

0.40
7.06

0.25

Legal and professional fees

Printing and stationery
Travelling and conveyance

8.31

2.49

1.54

1.5.73

9.13
8.83

Preliminary expenses

Auditors' remuneration
Audit fees
Limited review

0.45

Miscellaneous expenses

2.52

1..52

1,023.92

497.2L

0.45

0.45

\
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25. Earning Per Share
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31

For the year ended

March,2020
17,143.27)
50.00
(22.87l|

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company (Rs ln lakhs)
*(ln lakhs)
Weighted Average number of Equity shares
Basic and Diluted Earnin8s Per Share

For the year ended

31 March, 2019
1491.72)

s0.00
(e.82)

26. lmpact of COVID - 19

in meeting the financial obligations over the foreseeable future.

27. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
years or more of services, is entitled to Sratuity on terms not less
The Company has a defined employee benefit plan in the form of gratuity. Every employee, who has completed five

employment being an mount based on the respective employee's last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Company'
status and amounts recognised in the balance
The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded
sheet for the respective plans:
Net employee benefits

31 For the year ended
March,2020 31 March, 2019

For the year ended

Service Cost
Net lnterest cost/(lncome) on the net defined benefit Iiability/(asset)
Benefit Cost(Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit/loss)

Other total

lncome

0.69

L.32

0.25

0.07

0.94

1.39

31 For the year ended
March,2020 31 March, 2019

For the year ended

Rs

in

lacs

Rs in lacs

0,26

-Changes in financial assumptions

Others
Net (lncome)/Expense recognised for the period in OCI

(2.76].

0.s5

(2.s0)

0.5s

Balance Sheet

Defined Benefit asset
March

31,2020
lacs

Rs in

March 31, 2019
Rs in lacs

Present value of defined benefit obligation

2.24

3.80

Net liability

2.24

3.80

in the

value of the defined benefit

are as follows
March

31,2020
lacs

Rs in

Current service cost
nterest cost

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)

Rs in lacs

3.80

Opening defined benefit obligation
I

March 31, 2019

/

0.69

1.32

o.25

0.07

loss arlsing from

0.26

- Changes in financial assumptions
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)

Acquisition Adjustment
Closing defined benefit obligation

(2.76].

0.55

0.00

1.86

2.74

LKtlA

{v

\tr

3.80

March 31,2020
Rs in lacs

March 31, 2019
Rs in lacs

6.66%

Future salary increases

Mortality Rate

7.7L%

6%

6%

IALM 2006-2008

tAtM 2006-2008
U ltimate

U

ltimate

Contribution to defined contribution

Contribution to Provident and other fund

March 31,2020
Rs in lacs

March 31, 2019

March 31,2020
Rs in lacs

March 31. 2019
Rs in lacs

Rs in lacs

is as below:

Discount Rate
lncrease by 0.5%
Decrease 0.5%

Expected rate of change in compensation level of covered eployees
lncrease by 0.5%
Decrease 0.5%

Mortality Rate
lncrease by 0.5%
Decrease 0.5%

Attrition

2,77

3.45

2.38

4.20

2.38

4.20

2.77

3.45

2.26

3.81

) )1

3.80

2.24

3.79

2.24

3.81

Rate

lncrease by 0.5%
Decrease 0.5%

March
Rs

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)

31,2020
lacs

in

0.02

Between2and5years
Between 5 and 10 years
Beyond 10 years

Total expected payments

Discountrate:Thediscountrateisbasedonthe5yearsgovernmentbondyieldsasatthebalancesheetdatefortheestimatedterm

March 31, 2019
Rs in lacs

0.13

0.09

0.13

2.54
3.2s

0.47
20.66

5.90

2L.40

oftheobljgations.

Expected rate of return on plan assets: This is based on the expectation of the average long
term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the
obligations.
salary escalation rate: The estimates offuture salary increases considered taking into account
the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Description of risk exposure:
Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory
frame work which may very over time. Thus, the Company is exposed to various
risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:
lnterest rate risk:
result in an increase in the value ofthe Iiability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity risk:
holding illiquid assets not being sold in time.
Salary escalation risk:

for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value
of obligation will have a bearing on the plan,s liability.

I

\/

28,Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements
28.a. Lease
Finance Lease

The Company has entered into lease transactions for office premises. These lease agreements are for periods from 1 to 9 years. The office premises are generally rented on
cancellable terms with no escalation clause and renewable at the option of the Company. However, the office has been obtained for a period of 9 years cancellable at the option of
the company with an escalation clause of 5% every year.The lock in perlod of lease is 3 years.
Below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Office

Premises

Total

As at 1 April 2018 (restated)

Additions

!

Depreciation expense
As at 31 March 2019 (restated)
itio ns

13.39

13.39

Depreciation expense

4.09

4.09

As at 31 March 2020

9.30

9.30

Ad d

Below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the period:
2019-20
As at

l

2018-19 Restated

April

Ad d itions

rE.:g

Accretion of interest

t.22

Payme nts

4.62

As at 31 March

9.99

rrent
N on'cu rrent

4.37

Cu

\62

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 33.4.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities ts Ll.2%, with maturity between 2027-2022
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

20L9-20
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
lnterest expense on lease liabilities
Ixpense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses)
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (lncluded in other expenses)
Variable lease payments (included in other expenses)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss

4.09
1,22
3.-24

856

28.b. Contigent Liabilities

disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a liability.
"The Company does not have any contingent liabilities which are required to be disclosed in the financial statements as on 31st March 2020".

h

2018-19 Restated

29

Name of related parties and description of relationshio

i) Related parties where control exists
a) Holding Company
Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
Sastasundar Ventures Limited (Formerlv,Microsec Health Buddv limited),(Formerlv.Microsec Financialservices Limited) . Ultimate Holdine Companv

ii) Name of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the vear

a)

Fellow Subsidiary Companies/timited Liability Partnership
Retailer Shakti Supply Chain Private Limited (Formerly,Brandbuddy Engage Analytics Pvt.Ltd.)
Sastasundar Marketplace Ltd (Formerly,Sasta Sundar Shop Pvt.Ltd.)

lnnogrow Technologies Limited
Genu Path Labs

V

Ltd.

c) Key Management Personnel

Mr. Banwari Lal Mittal (Director)
Mr. Ravi Kant Sharma (Director)
Dr.Amitava Sarkar (Director)
Related party transactions

sl.N
o

the

Related Parties

Nature of Transactions

Transactions during
the year ended 31

March,2020
Proceeds from lssuance of

Tra nsactions

during the year
ended 31 March,

(

Payable)/Receivable

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

2019
s00,00

Share Capital

t2 l7

31.65

Sale of Goods

110.69

s3.32

Conversion charges

235.77

80.48

Purchase of Goods

7

;astasundar Healthbuddy Limited

Other lncome
Loan Taken

7.23

78,20

Loan Repaid

lnterest Expense

3.59

Balance (Payable)/ Receivable

2

lnnogrow Technologles Limited

(300.76)

Rent Expense

7.86

2.82

qmount Paid towrads Office
\4aintenance & Electricity

2.47

1.32

(24.80,

(0.1s

:xpe nse

3alance (Payable)/ Receivable
Sale of Goods

3

Retailer Shakti Supply Chain Private Other Expenses
Limited

7.30

26.36

o,o7

0.09

Balance (Payable)/ Receivable

4 Genu Path Labs Ltd.
5 Sastasundar

6

Marketplace Ltd

Dr.Amitava Sarkar

Sale of Goods

0.02

Sale of Goods

1.56

Remu

neration

(8.13

(02

(1 62

72.47

15.28

Balance (Payable)/ Receivable

(1.08)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables except as disclosed above.

't.

\
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30. Segment reporting

there are no seprate reportable segments under lnd A5-108-0perating Segments.
31. Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Companies financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonably

approxlmations of fair values:
)a rticu la rs

Fair Value as at

Carrying Value as at

March 31, 2020
(i) Financial Assets
a) Measured at FWPL

March 31, 2019

March 31,

March 31, 2019

202C

v

lnvestment in Liquid Fund

192.6(

192.60

b) Measured at Amortized Cost
Trades Receivables

3.10

12.51

3.10

Cash and cash equivalents

9.61

12.80

9.61

12.80

Other financial assets

500.55

294.62

500.55

294.62

fotal Financial assets
(ii) Financial Liabilities

513.25

319.93

513.25

319.93

72.57

a) Measured at Amortized Cost
Borrowings

78.20

Lease [iabilities

9.99

Trade payables
-Other financial liabilities
l-otal Financial liabilities

7,283.46

393.42

78.20
9.99

o.oo

1283.46

393.42

8.49

79.7L

8.49

19.7r

1380.14

413.13

1380.14

413.13

due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
31.1. Valuation principles

date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.
ln order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as explained in Note 31.2.
31.2. Fair Value Hierarchy of assets and liabilities
l. The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilitles as at March 31,2020 is as follows:

lnvestment in Liquid Fund

ll. The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 3f ,2079 is as follows:
Pa

Fair Value throush Profit & Loss Accounts

rticula rs
Carrying Value

Level - 1

Fair Value

Level - 2

Level - 3

Total

Assets

lnvestment in Liquid Fund
Total

92.60

192.60

192.60

792,60

1

192.60

192,50

192.50

792.60

\./

32. Risk Management and financial objectives:

appropriate controls.
32.1. Market Risk

receivables, borrowings etc.
32.2. Price

U

Risk

The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all investment decisions.

32,3. lnterest rate risk
The Company has taken debt to finance its working capital, which exposes it to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company to interest rate risk.

lntara<t

rato ri<L aYni<rrra.

March

31,2020

March 31,2019

Variable rate borrowing
Fixed rate borrowing

78.24
78.20

lnterest rate sensitivity:
Profit or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.
March
lnterest Rates increase by 50 basis points
lnterest Rates decrease by 50 basis points

31,2020

March 31,2019

(0.16)
0.16

32.4. Credit Risk

and recognised financial institutions with high credit worthiness.
Thc apcins enalvsis nf tradc rcrcivahles considpred from the date of invoice as follows:

Year
lacs

Less than 1

Financial Year Ended as on

Rs

in

March 31, 2020

J.IU

March 31, 2019

12.57

More than 1 Year
Rs in lacs

Total
in lacs

Rs

3.10
T2.5

7

32.5. Liquiditv Risk

market in which the entity operates.
Matuarities of Financial Liabilities

:

The table below analyzes the Company's Financial Liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities

W',tt

i"

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade Payables

78.20

78.20

1,283.46

1,283.46

Lease liablities

4.37

Other Financial Liabilities

8.49

5.62

9.99
8.49

As at March 31,2019

Within 12 months After 12 months

Total

Financial Liabilities
Borrowi ngs
Trade Payables

63.62

329.80

393.42

Lease liablities

Other Financial Liabilities

19.77

h

1-9.71

33. Capital management
Co m pa

ny.

adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth and maximise the shareholders value. The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business

borrowed funds. The Company's policy is to use short term and long term borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the
net debt to equity ratio. Net debts are long term and short term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash and cash equivalents). Equity comprises
share capital and reserves. The following table summarizes the capital ofthe Company:

at
31,2020

As

March
Borrowings

As at
March 31,2019

81.43

Less. Cash & cash equivalents

12.80
(12.80)

9.61

7r.82

Net debt
Eq u ity

(632.43

508.34
495.54

)

(s60.61)

Equity and Net debts
Gearing ratio

-L2.8%

34. Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised only to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the losses can be utilised. ln the absence of reasonable
been recognised in the financial statements.
35. Share Warrants

Company had issued five share warrants at a subscription price of Rs 1,00,00,000/- each to Benett, Coleman and Company Limited. The Face Value of the warant being

to subscribe to and be allotted the share at a price determined as per Article 2.3 ofthe Warrant Agreement. Further, the
constitute 26%of the share capital of the company (On a fully diluted basis).

BCCL'S shareholding in

Rs.

the company shall at all times

CompanyhasalsoenteredintoAdvertisementagreementwithBenett ColemanandCompanyLlmitedforlongtermcreditfacilityforreleaseof advertisementtothetuneof

Rs.

of the Advertisement Agreement.
35. Disclosure for Going Concern
The Company had started its operation in fast moving consumer goods in 2018 with an aim to reach the consumer with a premium brand. During the year under consideration, the
company had taken various steps to build distribution channel & offline stores, which did not turn out as expected and huge losses had been incurred. Presently the company has
Healthbuddy of providing the necessary funds to implement the new plans and strategy to revive the business.
37. Previous years figures have been regrouped/reclassified,

where necessary, to confirm to current year classification.

*l't
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HAPPYMATE FOODS LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 3L,ZOZO
38. First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2020, are the first annual lnd AS financial statements, the Company has
prepared in accordance wit[lnd AS, with date of transition being April 01,,2018. For periods up to and including
the year ended March 3].,

2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (lndian GAAp or previous GAAp).

Companies Act 20L3, read together with paragraph 7

Accordingly, the company has prepared financial statements which comply with lnd AS applicable for periods ending
on March 31,2020,
together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 37,2019, as described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 01, 201g, the
company's date of transition to lnd AS, This note explains the principal adjustments made by the company in restating its lndian
GAAP
financial statements, including the balance sheet as at April 01, 2018 and the previously published lndian GAAP financial statements as
at
and for the year ended March 31, 20j.9.

Exemptions applied
lnd AS L0L "First-time Adoption of lndian Accounting Standards" allows first-time adopter certain exemptions from the retrospective
application of certain requirements under lnd AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions:
lnd AS optional exemptions
1 Deemed cost
lnd AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to lnd AS, measured as per the previous GAAp and
use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.
Accordingly, since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all
of its
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, as recognised in its lndian GAAP financials, as deemed cost at the transition
date.

2

The Company has elected to measure investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries at deemed cost, which is the previously
applicable

lndian GAAP carrying amount, as on the date of transition.

lnd AS mandatory exceptions
1 Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance with lnd AS at the date of transition to lnd AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same
date in accordance with previous GAAP, unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.
lnd AS estimates as at April 01, 2018 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in the conformity with previous GAAp.
The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with lnd AS reflect conditions at April 01, 201g, the date
of
transition to lnd AS and as of March 31, 2019.

2 Classification and measurement of financial assets
lnd AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that
exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.
Reconciliations between previous GAAp and lnd AS
lnd AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables
represent the reconciliations from previous GAAp to lnd

AS: \

\I
\,,
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Reconciliation of equity as

at March 3L,2OL9
As

at March 3L,20L9

(End of Last Period presented under previous GAAP)

Particu

la

Foot note

rs

As per

Effect of Transition

As per

Previous GAAP

tO IND AS

lnd-AS

ASSETS

Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Other non-current assets

27.L4
500.00
527.L4

Current assets
(a) lnventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) lnvestment

1

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Other Financial Assets
(c) Other current assets
(d) lncome Tax Assets (net)

20s.93
233.07

126.66

0.00

126.66

183.00

9.60

192.60

12.51

'J.2.5L

12.80

L2.80

0.00
63.38

Total assets

27.L4
Q94.07]|
(294.071

294.62

(o.ss)

294.62
62.82

0.04

0.04

398.39

303.56

702.O5

925.53

9.50

935.L2

EQUITY AND LIABITITIES

Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity

500.01
'J.

Total equity

(1.2s)
498.76

500.01
9.58

8.33

9.s8

s08.34

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
(a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and

small enterprises
(b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than

329.80

329.80

Micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Long term provisions

3.67

3.67

333.47

333.47

Current liabilities
(a) Financlal liabilities
I

(i) Trade Payables
(a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro

enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other

h

than Micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Other financial liabilities
b) Other current liabilities
c) Provisions

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilties

*# i

h

6.41.

6.41-

57.22

57.22

19.71

t9.71.

9.84

9.84

0.13

0.13

93.30

93.31
426.78

426.77

92s.s3

9.58

935.12

(Rs. in Lacs)

Reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2019
Particu lars

Footnote
Reference

Previous GAAP

Effect of Transition

3l

to IND AS

March 2019

lncome
Revenue from Operations
Other lncome
Finance lncome

88.19
1

88.19

9.90

9.60

19.50

98.09

9.60

LO7.69

Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed
(lncrease) / Decrease in Inventories of Finished Goods and

61.69

61.69

(42.87)

(42.87)

Traded Goods
Employee benefits expense

2,3

(o.ss)

80.74

497.79

0.02

497.21.

s99.33
(so1.2s)

(0.s3)
10.13

598.81
(4e1.12)

(s01.2s)

10.13

(4sL.72ll

(s01.2s)

10.13

l4s]-.72l

87.29
2.04

Depreciation
Other Expenses

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax

2.04

Exceptional ltems

Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax Expense
Cu

rrent tax

Deferred tax
lncome Tax Expense
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive lncome (OCl)
Items that will not be subsequently classified to profit or loss
Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit plans
lncome Tax effect

2,3

Other Comprehensive !ncome for the year

Total Comprehensive lncome for the year (lll+lV)

(0.ss)

(o.ss)

(o.ss)

(0.ss

(s01.2s)

9.58

l4sL.67l

Reconciliation of Other Equity as on March 37,20L9 and April 01, 2018
Amount (Rs in Lacs)
Protit Reco tor
As on 31st March, 2019

Particula rs
Balance of Other Equity under IGAAP

As on 1st April, 2018

the year ended
March 31, 2019

(1.2s

(so1.2s)

9.s8

9.58

Add: lnd AS Adjustments
Reversal of Lease Equalisation Reserve
Fair Valuation of Mutual Fund

8.33
Balance of Other Equity under lnd AS
presentation
requirements for the purpose of this note.
The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to lnd AS

h

(4e1.67)

Footnotes to the reconciliation of Other equity as at Ma rch 31,201,9 and profit or loss for the year ended March 31,20L9:
1. Fair valuation of current investments

Under lndian GAAP, the Company has accounted for short term investments in unquoted mutualfunds as investment measured at cost less provision
for other than temporary diminution in the value of investments. Under lnd AS, the Company has reconised the investments as FWPL and accordingly
gain/(loss) on fair valaution has been recognised in Statement on profit & loss.
2. Re-measurements of post-employment benefit obligations
Under Ind AS, re-measurements i.e. actulfialgains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense
on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in Other Comprehensive lncome (OCl) instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of this change there is no impact on the total equity as at March 31,
2018.
3. Other comprehensive income

Under lnd AS, all items of income and expense recognised during the year should be included in profit or loss for the year, unless a standard requires
or permits otherwise. ltems of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss are shown in the statement of profit and loss as "other
comprehensive income" (OCl). OCI for the Company includes re-measurements of defined benefit plans of Rs. (0.55) lacs .The concept of other
comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.
4. Retained earnings
Retained earnings as at March 3L,2079 has been adjusted consequent to the above lnd AS transition adjustments.
5. Statement of cash flows
The transition from lndian GAAP

to Ind

AS has

not had a material impact on the statement of cash flows.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of

the

2.1

Financial Statement.
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